
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Nicola Meurer, Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 01235 422523

E-mail: nicola.meurer@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 25 October 2016

Website: http://www.southoxon.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 2 NOVEMBER 2016 AT 6.00 PM

LADYGROVE ROOM, DIDCOT CIVIC HALL, BRITWELL ROAD, DIDCOT, OX11 
7JN

Members of the Committee:
Felix Bloomfield (Chairman)
Joan Bland
Margaret Davies
Anthony Dearlove
Jeannette Matelot

Toby Newman (Vice-
Chairman)
David Nimmo-Smith
Richard Pullen
David Turner

Margaret Turner
Ian White

Substitutes
Charles Bailey
Stefan Gawrysiak
Paul Harrison

Stephen Harrod
Lorraine Hillier
Elaine Hornsby

Imran Lokhon
Sue Lawson

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Public Document Pack



2

1 Apologies  

2 Declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests, and other 
declarations, in respect of items on the agenda for this meeting.  

3 Minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 5 - 26)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the minutes of the committee meetings held 
on 7 September and 5 October 2016. 

4 Urgent items  

5 Applications deferred or withdrawn  

6 Proposals for site visit reports  

Development control applications and tree preservation orders

Planning applications - background papers and additional 
information

All the background papers with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (eg those held in enforcement files) used in the reports in this 
agenda are held in the application file (working file) referenced by the application 
number. 

Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting.

Summary index of applications

Parish Site 
Address

Proposal Application No Page 
No.

7 P16/S1400/FUL 
- Corbiere, 
Dunsden Way, 
Binfield Heath  

Demolition of existing garage and 
erection of a two-storey 4-bedroom 
dwelling and formation of new access 
to the south of the approved 
replacement dwelling.

P16/S1400/FUL 27 - 34

8 P16/S2650/FUL 
- Newlands, 

Removal of Condition 2 on planning 
permission P12/S2526/FUL to enable 

P16/S2650/FUL 35 - 44



3

Platts Lane, 
Northend  

the permanent retention of the use of 
land for the stationing of a residential 
mobile home.

9 P16/S1955/HH - 
Bridleway Barn, 
Spriggs Alley, 
Chinnor Hill  

Erection of a single storey extension 
and addition of a rooflight to the 
detached dwelling, construction of 
driveway and erection of a detached 
two-bay garage.

P16/S1955/HH 45 - 56

10 P16/S2222/FUL 
- 48 Park Street, 
Thame  

Conversion of the existing garage into 
a one bedroom bungalow.

P16/S2222/FUL 57 - 70

11 P16/S1971/FUL 
- 4 Elm Drive, 
Garsington  

Demolition of the existing internal and 
external walls and the erection of a 
replacement dwelling.  

P16/S1971/FUL 71 - 84



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Minutes
OF A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee

HELD ON WEDNESDAY 7 SEPTEMBER 2016 AT 6.00 PM 

FOUNTAIN CONFERENCE CENTRE, HOWBERY PARK, BENSON LANE, 
CROWMARSH GIFFORD, WALLINGFORD, OX10 8BA

Present:

Felix Bloomfield (Chairman)
Joan Bland, Margaret Davies, Jeannette Matelot, Lorraine Hillier (as substitute for 
Anthony Dearlove), Toby Newman, David Nimmo-Smith, Richard Pullen, David 
Turner, Margaret Turner, and Ian White

Also present: 

John Cotton, Paul Harrison and Lynn Lloyd 

Apologies:

Anthony Dearlove tendered apologies. 

Officers:

Emma Bowerman, Sharon Crawford, Steve Culliford, Paula Fox, Kim Gould, Paul 
Lucas, and Tom Wyatt 

72 Declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest 

David Nimmo-Smith declared that in relation to application P16/S0970/O at Thames 
Farm, Reading Road, Shiplake, he had chaired Henley Town Council’s planning 
committee when it considered this application and, therefore, he would not take part 
in the discussion or voting on this item.  

73 Minutes of the previous meeting 

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meetings held on 13 and 27 July, and 10 
August 2016 as correct records and agree that the Chairman signs these as such.  

74 Urgent items 

None

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2

75 Applications deferred or withdrawn 

The committee noted that application P16/S2114/RM (on land within Eyres Close, 
Eyres Lane, Ewelme) had been withdrawn from the agenda at the request of one of 
the local ward members, Richard Pullen, to allow for the committee to visit the site.  

76 Proposals for site visit reports 

None

77 P16/S0970/O - Thames Farm, Reading Road, Shiplake 

David Nimmo-Smith declared an interest in this item, stepped down from the 
committee and took no part in the committee’s debate or voting on this application.  

The committee considered application P16/S0970/O for outline planning permission 
for up to 95 dwellings and associated public open space and landscaping, means of 
access and strategic landscaping not reserved, on land at Thames Farm, Reading 
Road, Shiplake.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.  

Officer update: 
 Since the publication of the agenda, a further 128 responses had been 

received objecting to the application, 28 of which were from new respondents
 the council had received allegations that some of the letters of support were 

fraudulent and as a result two representations have been removed from the 
council’s website 

 the officer would contact the Department for Communities and Local 
Government on 8 September 2016, advising of the committee’s decision; the 
department would then consider whether to call-in the application for the 
Secretary of State’s determination 

 officers had sent the committee additional information in response to a 
submission by the local Member of Parliament, and further information on 
case law and recent appeal decisions 

David Nimmo-Smith, a representative of Henley-on-Thames Town Council, spoke 
objecting to the application.  The town council’s concerns included:

 the site was within the Henley and Harpsden Neighbourhood Plan area and 
the plan had not included this as a housing site 

 the policy objections to the proposed development of this site in 2013 were still 
relevant to this application, including the landscape objections  

 the sight lines at the site’s access were inadequate, given the amount of traffic 
using the Reading Road 

 the Neighbourhood Plan could not be considered out of date 
 this part of the district was already making a significant contribution to the 

district’s five year housing land supply; why should this area suffer further 
housing?  

Page 6



3

Tudor Taylor, a representative of Shiplake Parish Council, spoke objecting to the 
application.  The parish council’s concerns included:

 the five year housing land supply was one consideration but should not 
override the Neighbourhood Plan, which itself had over-provided for housing 
within its area  

 a number of matters remained but had been dealt with by the officer’s 
proposed planning conditions; these issues should be resolved before the 
committee considered the application  

 the highways access to the site would be a safety risk 
 there would be an adverse impact on the character of the area 
 the proposed development was unsustainable 
 residents of the new homes would have to rely on their cars and children 

would have to be bussed to schools outside the village 
 there were neighbourhood planning, environmental, social and sustainability 

grounds to refuse the application 
 the proposal trampled on local democracy 

Kester George, a representative of Harpsden Parish Council, spoke objecting to the 
application.  The parish council’s concerns included:

 the proposal was contrary to the Neighbourhood Plan, which planned for 500 
homes in the plan area up to 2027, but had not included housing on this site 

 of the possible housing sites considered for the Neighbourhood Plan, Thames 
Farm had been near the bottom of the priority list due to the high volume of 
traffic that used the Reading Road 

 it was a greenfield site that would only provide a separate community, not an 
integrated one with the rest of the village 

 to allow this application would make a mockery of the neighbourhood planning 
process and its role in the national planning system 

David Bartholomew, the local county councillor, spoke objecting to the application, 
his concerns included:

 support for this application on pre-printed forms should be discounted 
 the committee had rejected a similar application on this site previously 
 the only change in circumstances was the council no longer had a five year 

housing land supply 
 there were five reasons to refuse this application as follows 
 the proposed development would harm the character and appearance of this 

rural area 
 at senior level, the county council objected to this application on highways 

grounds, disagreeing with the highways officer’s comments; urbanising 
measures were inappropriate in this rural area, and the application provided 
no additional infrastructure 

 the county council objected on education grounds; there would be a need for 
additional primary education facilities and the application did not provide for 
this; residents’ children would have to be bussed to a primary school 

 the application was unsustainable; there would be no footpath, no cycle path, 
but rather an urban island where residents’ only option would be to use their 
cars  

 the application was contrary to the Neighbourhood Plan, which had not 
allocated this site for housing and had been prepared through a democratic 
process; the Crane v SSCLG 2015 case was relevant to this application 

Page 7



4

Les Durrant, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application: 
 the application provided for the need for more housing in the district, 

particularly affordable housing of which there would be the full 40 per cent 
 this was a high quality development that would be delivered at the earliest 

opportunity 
 the design of the development showed the applicant’s commitment to quality 

Michael Watson, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application: 
 the developer had delivered housing schemes across South East England 
 it was fully committed to deliver a high quality development 
 there would be 40 per cent affordable housing on the site
 the developer would work with the Shiplake community 

Brett Farmery, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application: 
 installing a roundabout at the access to the site was not possible due to the 

position of the residential access to a property opposite the site 
 the county council preferred a right-turn lane option 
 footways would be installed at the front of the site 

Paul Harrison, one of the local ward members, spoke objecting to the application. His 
concerns included:

 the committee had previously considered this site unsuitable for housing, as 
had the Neighbourhood Plan 

 it was not the case that the lack of a five year housing land supply out-ranked 
the Neighbourhood Plan and Local Plan 

 Shiplake Parish Council’s independent highway safety assessment should be 
taken into account  

 the committee should ignore suggestions that the Highlands Farm housing site 
would not be necessary  

 support for the application by pro-forma response should be ignored 
 the Crane v SSCLG 2015 case was relevant to this application 
 the Neighbourhood Plan was in date and this application was contrary to it 
 the application, if approved, would add to the air quality problems in Duke 

Street, Henley 
 if the committee approved this application, more housing applications would 

follow 

The committee considered that more weight should be given to the Neighbourhood 
Plan.  This site was unsuitable for housing as any benefit from the development was 
outweighed by the significant and demonstrable harm to the safety of road users and 
to the character and appearance of the area.  The committee also considered that 
the application was contrary to the Neighbourhood Plan, it did not provide for primary 
education needs, and it was unsustainable development.  

Contrary to the officer’s recommendation, a motion, moved and seconded, to refuse 
the application was declared carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to refuse application P16/S0970/O for the following reasons:

1. The application site lies beyond the edge of the settlement of Lower Shiplake (a 
smaller village) and is not a site allocated for development in the Joint Henley 
and Harpsden Neighbourhood Plan.  The development would extend beyond the 

Page 8



5

settlement edge, into the adjacent countryside, in a manner that does not accord 
with the district's strategy for growth.  The proposal would have a detrimental 
impact on a locally valued landscape and detract from the character and 
appearance of the area.  As such, the development would be contrary to the 
National Planning Policy Framework, policies CS1, CSS1, CSR1, CSEN1 and 
CSQ3 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy, policies C4, G2 and G4 of the 
South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011, and policies H1 and DSQ1 of the Joint 
Henley and Harpsden Neighbourhood Plan.

2. The proposal would have a severe adverse residual cumulative effect on the 
safety and convenience of highway users, including pedestrians and cyclists.  As 
such, the development would be contrary to the National Planning Policy 
Framework, policies T1 and G2 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011, and 
the objectives of the Joint Henley and Harpsden Neighbourhood Plan.

3. In the absence of a completed S106 legal agreement, the proposal fails to secure 
affordable housing to meet the needs of the district.  As such, the development 
would be contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework, policy CSH3 of the 
South Oxfordshire Core Strategy, and the objectives of the Joint Henley and 
Harpsden Neighbourhood Plan.

4. In the absence of a completed S106 legal agreement, the proposal fails to secure 
infrastructure necessary to meet the needs of the development.  As such, the 
development would be contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework, 
policies CSI1 and CSG1 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy, policies C6, R2 
and R6 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011, and the objectives of the Joint 
Henley and Harpsden Neighbourhood Plan.  

78 P15/S4227/FUL - Rear of 22 and 24 Blacklands Road, Benson 

Felix Bloomfield and Richard Pullen, the local ward councillors, stepped down from 
the committee and took no part in the debate or voting on this item.  Toby Newman 
took the chair for this item.  

The committee considered application P15/S4227/FUL for the demolition of 22 and 
24 Blacklands Road and the erection of 17 dwellings, including 6 affordable homes, 
on land to the rear of 22 and 24 Blacklands Road, Benson.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Officer update: a further letter of objection had been received from a neighbour.  
Also, the Defence Infrastructure Organisation had made an objection that insufficient 
noise mitigation information had been provided with the application, and on safety 
grounds in the event of an emergency at RAF Benson.  Also, Environmental Health 
had raised no objections subject to noise mitigation conditions.  

Jon Fowler, a representative of Benson Parish Council, spoke objecting to the 
application.  The parish council’s concerns included:

 there were already 241 homes approved for Benson, 35 per cent over the 
indicative figure given in the Strategic Housing Market Assessment; it was 
unfair that Benson had to take more housing 

Page 9



6

 the Benson Neighbourhood Plan was at an advanced state, hopefully going to 
referendum in January 2017; why should the neighbourhood plan be 
completed if this committee ignored it and continued to allocate housing on 
other sites?  

 the site was not overgrown, it was a valuable home to wildlife, and protecting 
biodiversity was important 

 the development was not sustainable 

Stewart Fryatt, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application, his concerns 
included:

 road safety—the road was a rat run, with many parked cars, and would 
worsen if this development was allowed 

 this development was not part of the local plan 
 there would be a loss of privacy from overlooking for local residents, spoiling 

the enjoyment of their gardens 
 there was a variety of wildlife on the site and this should be protected 

Rob Wood, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application, his concerns included:
 the development was too dense, representing overdevelopment right up to the 

site boundaries 
 this would cause overlooking and noise disturbance 

Simon Sharp, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application: 
 the unadopted Neighbourhood Plan carried little weight 
 there were no objections from the county highways officers 
 to reduce potential overlooking, the velux windows could be obscure glazed 
 there was sufficient distance to the adjacent properties 
 the council did not have a five-year housing land supply 
 the benefits of the proposed development outweighed the harm 
 there was no landscape harm as this was a derelict site 
 the development was sustainable and would support local services 
 there would be affordable homes 
 the density was comparable with housing nearby 

Felix Bloomfield, one of the local ward members, spoke objecting to the application, 
his concerns included:

 the site was outside the built up area of the village 
 it conflicted with policy CSR1 and was contrary to policy D1 
 the development was too dense 
 it had a poor layout and would have an adverse impact on the residents of 

Blacklands Road and Brook Street and was unneighbourly 
 the harm outweighed the benefits of this proposal 
 there was little landscaping in the proposal 

The committee considered that the proposed development was of poor design, had a 
poor layout, lacked amenity space and landscaping, did not protect the biodiversity of 
the site, did not provide sufficient distance to adjacent property, and was overbearing.  
The neighbourhood plan was also close to completion and approving this application 
would be contrary to the aims of neighbourhood planning.  

Contrary to the officer’s recommendation, a motion, moved and seconded, to refuse 
the application was declared carried on being put to the vote.

Page 10



7

RESOLVED: to refuse outline planning permission for application P15/S4227/FUL for 
the following reasons:

1. That the scheme represents an overdevelopment of the site; 
(i) the layout is cramped and does not allow for adequate landscaping to 

provide well designed external areas at the entrance to or within the site 
and would detract from the character of the area contrary to Policy CSQ3 
of the adopted South Oxfordshire Core Strategy and Saved Policies G2, 
D1 and H4 of the adopted South Oxfordshire Local Plan; 

(ii) the layout does not allow for the provision of open space to mitigate the 
loss of biodiversity contrary to Policy CSB1 of the adopted South 
Oxfordshire Core Strategy and Saved Policy C6 of the adopted South 
Oxfordshire Local Plan; and 

(iii) the layout does not provide for adequate standards of residential amenity 
for the occupants of the dwellings/flats on plots 16, 17, 11 and 14 because 
the private amenity areas are below the Council's minimum standard 
contrary to Saved Policy D3 of the adopted South Oxfordshire Local Plan 
and advice in the South Oxfordshire Design Guide. 

(iv) The harm identified to the character of the area, biodiversity and the 
amenity of occupants of the units would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits of providing a net gain of 15 houses to the district's 
housing land supply and paragraph 14 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework should not override the development plan policies in this 
instance. 

2. That, having regard to the location and size of the flats above garages on plots 
16 and 17 in relation to 14, 16, 18 and 20 Blacklands Road, the proposal 
represents an unneighbourly form of development which would be oppressive 
and overbearing detracting from the residential amenity of the occupants of 
those properties. As such the proposal is contrary to Saved Policies D4 and H4 
of the adopted South Oxfordshire Local Plan. The harm identified to neighbour 
amenity would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits of providing 
a net gain of 15 houses to the district's housing land supply and paragraph 14 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework should not override the development 
plan policies in this instance.  

79 P15/S4131/RM - Land adjoining Greenwood Avenue, Chinnor 

Ian White, one of the local ward councillors, stepped down from the committee and 
took no part in the debate or voting on this item.  

The committee considered application P15/S4131/RM for reserved matters following 
outline permission P14/S0953/O for the appearance, landscaping, layout and scale of 
the development on land adjoining Greenwood Avenue, Chinnor.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Officer update: a further two responses had been received objecting to the 
application.  The materials submitted for this development were considered 
acceptable.  

Page 11



8

Richard Searl, the representative of Chinnor Parish Council, spoke objecting to the 
application.  The parish council’s concerns included:

 The proposed development was out of scale, overbearing, unneighbourly, and 
out of keeping with the local neighbourhood 

 There should be car ports, not garages 
 The neighbourhood planning steering group recognised that two other 

adjacent sites were also subject to planning applications; all three applications 
should be considered together to harmonise planning of the area 

 Policies D4, H4, and T1 were all still relevant 
 The neighbourhood planning group hoped that the plan could go to a 

referendum in early 2017 

Roger Payne, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application, his concerns 
included:

 The dormer windows facing existing property would invade residents’ privacy 
and cause overlooking 

 This was contrary to policy D4 of the local plan 

Phil Byron, of the Chinnor and Princes Risborough Railway, reported that:
 An acoustic barrier was required under the previous permission on the site 

Lorna Juarez, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application: 
 The local objections were to the principle of the development which had 

already been established 
 The distance from the three-storey building to neighbouring property was in 

excess of the design standard 
 The impact of the adjacent railway had been taken into account 
 There would be parking for existing and future residents 
 There were no statutory consultee objections to the application 
 The section 106 agreement would bring contributions to education and 

highways improvements 

Lynn Lloyd, one of the local ward members, spoke objecting to the application, her 
concerns included:

 The Chinnor neighbourhood planning team had worked hard to prepare a plan 
and their work should not be ignored 

 There were local concerns over the orientation of the largest building on the 
site 

 There had not been much liaison between the developer and the parish 
council 

 There would be an increase in the volume of traffic from this and other 
developments in the village 

Ian White, one of the local ward members, spoke objecting to the application, his 
concerns included:

 The three-storey building had been located at the highest point on the site; it 
should be relocated to a lower part  

 There were concerns about the adequacy of the local sewage system 
 There was no mention of zero carbon growth in the report and this should be 

part of the development’s design 
 The application should be deferred to allow these issues to be resolved 

Page 12



9

A motion, moved and seconded, to defer consideration of the application was 
declared carried on being put to the vote.  

RESOLVED: to defer consideration of application P15/S4131/RM to allow further 
time to establish whether local concerns could be overcome, including the size of the 
three-storey block, the capacity of the sewage system, and an acoustic barrier to 
reduce noise from the railway.  

80 P16/S2114/RM - Land within Eyres Close, off Eyres Lane, 
Ewelme 

This item was withdrawn from the agenda to allow the committee to undertake a site 
visit.  

81 P16/S2145/FUL - Cariad Court, Cleeve Road, Goring on 
Thames 

The committee considered application P16/S2145/FUL for the erection of two 
dwellings over re-built garages and existing basement car park at Cariad Court, 
Cleeve Road, Goring-on-Thames.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Catherine Hall, a representative of Goring-on-Thames Parish Council, spoke 
objecting to the application.  The parish council’s concerns included:

 The design of the proposed development was inappropriate for this location in 
terms of its scale, mass and form  

 It would have an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the Area 
of Outstanding Natural Beauty and the nearby Conservation Area 

 The window design was inappropriate and the roof design was poor 
 Existing privacy levels must be maintained, not worsened by the proposed 

development 

Helen Abbott, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application, her concerns 
included:

 The proposed development would cause overlooking 
 There was an increased likelihood of noise and light pollution 
 The Silver Birch trees and hedge were to be removed; this was unnecessary 

and would result in a loss of landscape screening 
 Was the lightweight structure necessary?  
 How would the green roof be drained? 

Errol Facey, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application: 
 The windows had been designed to avoid overlooking but they could be 

recessed to obscure the view 
 The original design had been withdrawn following objections 
 The scheme had been re-designed following talks with the planning and 

landscape officers, with the resulting reduced impact on neighbours 
 The town council had not objected to the principle of development on this site 

Page 13



10

Keith Halson, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application: 
 The proposed development would improve and enhance the garage block 

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P16/S2145/FUL subject to 
the following conditions:  
1. Commencement three years - full planning permission.
2. Approved plans. 
3. Landscaping scheme (replacement planting).
4. Tree protection method.
5. Parking and manoeuvring areas retained.
6. Cycle parking facilities to be provided.
7. Construction traffic management plan to be submitted.

82 P16/S1013/FUL - Vale Cottage, Northfield Avenue, Lower 
Shiplake 

The committee considered application P16/S1013/FUL for the erection of a 2.5 storey 
five bedroom detached dwelling with a detached double garage following demolition 
of the existing house and detached garage at Vale Cottage, Northfield Avenue, 
Lower Shiplake.  

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Tudor Taylor, a representative of Shiplake Parish Council, spoke objecting to the 
application.  The parish council’s concerns included:

 The design, scale and bulk of the proposal did not reflect the local context 
 The visual impact of the proposed development would stand out against the 

street scene 
 The development was unneighbourly 

Michelle Brown, the applicant, spoke in support of the application: 
 Her family wished to extend their property and better insulate it but had been 

advised by the architect to demolish it and re-build 
 The height of the new house had been reduced 
 The house was not up against the boundary and overlooking of neighbouring 

property would be reduced by the new design 
 There would be new planting to provide screening to neighbouring property 

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P16/S1013/FUL subject to 
the following conditions:
1. Commencement of development within three years.
2. Development to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans. 
3. Schedule of materials to be agreed prior to commencement of development. 

Page 14



11

4. Obscure glazing for north-west facing first floor window.
5. Rooflights to be at least 1.7m above cill level and no additional rooflights
6. Withdrawal of permitted development rights for extensions, roof extensions and 

outbuildings.
7. Parking and manoeuvring areas to be retained as approved.
8. No garage conversion into accommodation without planning permission.
9. Details of hard and soft landscaping to be agreed prior to commencement of 

development.
10. Details of tree protection measures to be agreed prior to commencement of 

development.  

83 P16/S0972/FUL - 13 The Ridgeway, Nettlebed 

David Nimmo-Smith, one of the local ward councillors, stepped down from the 
committee and took no part in the debate or voting on this item.  

The committee considered application P16/S0972/FUL for the erection of a two 
storey two-bedroom dwelling at 13 The Ridgeway, Nettlebed.  

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Neil Boddington, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application: 
 The design of the proposed dwelling mirrored that of the neighbouring dwelling 
 The distance between the new dwelling and the neighbouring property was 

slightly below the design standards but the property had been angled to avoid 
issues 

David Nimmo-Smith, one of the local ward members, spoke to the application:
 The parish council’s objections to this application were noted but he had no 

objection as local ward member 

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P16/S0972/FUL subject to 
the following conditions:
1. Commencement of development within three years. 
2. Development to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans. 
3. Details of levels to be agreed prior to commencement of development.
4. Schedule of materials to be agreed prior to commencement of development.
5. Withdrawal of permitted development rights for extensions, rooflights and 

outbuildings.
6. New vehicular access to be constructed to highway specifications.
7. Car parking to be retained. 
8. No surface water drainage to the highway.
9. No vehicular access gates to be provided. 
10. Details of hard and soft landscaping to be agreed prior to commencement of 

development.  

Page 15



12

84 P16/S1237/FUL - 1 Holliers Close, Sydenham 

Ian White, one of the local ward councillors, stepped down from the committee and 
took no part in the debate or voting on this item.  

The committee considered application P16/S1237/FUL for the demoltion of an 
existing bungalow and the erection of two detached dwellings with new access into 
the site.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

James Ward spoke objecting to the application on behalf of local residents, their 
concerns included: 

 The principle of development on this site 
 The impact of the proposed development on the character and appearance of 

the surrounding area 
 There was a Conservation Area and Listed cottage opposite the site 
 There would be a loss of privacy for neighbouring residents 
 Soil would have to be removed from the site to create the development and 

this would present a risk 
 The proposed development needed to be re-designed 

Ian White, one of the local ward members, spoke objecting to the application:
 He agreed with the arguments put forward by the objector, Mr Ward 
 The proposal would have a significant impact on the Conservation Area 

nearby 

A motion, moved and seconded, to defer consideration of the application to allow the 
committee to visit the site was declared carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to defer consideration of planning application P16/S1237/FUL to allow 
the committee to visit the site.  

The meeting closed at 9.05pm 

Chairman Date

Page 16



1

Minutes
OF A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee

HELD AT 6.00 PM ON WEDNESDAY 5 OCTOBER 2016

DIDCOT CIVIC HALL, BRITWELL ROAD, DIDCOT, OX11 7JN

Present:

Felix Bloomfield (Chairman)

Joan Bland, Anthony Dearlove, Lorraine Hillier, Elaine Hornsby, Toby Newman, 
Richard Pullen, David Turner, Margaret Turner and Ian White

Apologies:

Margaret Davies, Jeannette Matelot and David Nimmo-Smith tendered apologies. 

Officers:

Emma Bowerman, Paul Bowers, Katherine Canavan, Paula Fox, Kim Gould, Nicola 
Meurer and Davina Sarac

Also present: 

Nigel Champken-Woods, John Walsh and Sue Lawson

97 Declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest 

Felix Bloomfield declared an interest in relation to application P16/S2114/RM – land 
within Eyres Close, Ewelme, stating that he would stand down as chairman and leave 
the room.

98 Urgent items 

None.

99 Applications deferred or withdrawn 

Item 8 – application P15/S3385/FUL – The Workshop, Newtown Road, Henley-on-
Thames had been withdrawn from the agenda and deferred to a planning committee 
at a later date to allow members the opportunity to attend a site visit.

100 Proposals for site visit reports 

Public Document Pack

Page 17

Agenda Item 3



2

None.

101 P16/S2114/RM - Land within Eyres Close, Eyres Lane, Ewelme 

Richard Pullen, one the local ward councillors, stepped down from the committee and 
took no part in the debate or voting on this item. Felix Bloomfield also stepped down 
from the committee and left the room for the duration of this item.   

Toby Newman acted as chairman for this item.

The committee considered reserved matters application P16/2114/ RM (access, 
appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) associated with the outline permission to 
erect two semi-detached dwellings on land within Eyres Close, off Eyres Lane in 
Ewelme.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Paul Humphrey, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application. His concerns 
included the following:

 Since the first application that was allowed at appeal, the proposal is no longer 
for two starter homes; they are now 60% bigger and not designed 
sympathetically;

 The access and parking arrangements will compromise road safety and 
convenience;

 The maintenance of the orchard should be secured by condition; and
 Request to protect the remaining land on site and remove the B8 use 

classification.

Richard Pullen, one of the local ward members, spoke objecting to the application. 
His concerns included the following:

 The appeal wrongly disregarded the impact on the AONB;
 The turning head could be a problem if visitors were to park there;
 The increase in size of built form; and
 The design is not in keeping with the surrounding area – white render is not 

appropriate.

The committee considered the application, with advice from officers where 
appropriate; they did not agree that the design, materials, change in size of the units 
or the impact on the trees and AONB could be resolved by condition.

Contrary to the officer’s recommendation, motion, moved and seconded, to refuse 
the application was declared carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to refuse reserved matters approval for application P16/S2114/RM for 
the following reasons:

 Harm to the character of the AONB through the loss of trees and vegetation, 
contrary to: saved polices C4, C9 and D4 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan; 
policy CSEN1 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy; and paragraph 115 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Page 18



3

 The poor relationship between the parking spaces and the turning head, 
contrary to saved policies T1 and D2 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan.

 Unsympathetic design and materials and overly large scale, contrary to saved 
policy D1 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan and policy CSQ3 of the South 
Oxfordshire Core Strategy.

102 P16/S1237/FUL - 1 Holliers Close, Sydenham 

Ian White, one of the local ward councillors, stepped down from the committee and 
took no part in the debate or voting on this item.   

The committee considered application P16/S1237/FUL to demolish the existing 
bungalow and erect two detached dwellings with new access into the site at 1 
Holliers Close, Sydenham.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

James Ward, a representative of Sydenham parish council, spoke objecting to the 
application.  His concerns included the following:

 Although the parish council would welcome development in Sydenham, this 
particular application is not appropriate;

 The materials are not in keeping with the street scene nor the conservation 
area; 

 The impact of the extra windows on the neighbours; and
 Flooding concerns due to the amount of soil being removed and neighbouring 

properties being at a lower level.

Paul Hems, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application. His speech 
included the following:

 The applicant has extant permission for a previous scheme, so the harm over 
and above the approved scheme would need to be identified;

 The form and scale would remain the same;
 Overlooking would remain the same;
 The materials are in keeping with the locality; and
 The applicant would be happy to condition materials.

Ian White, one of the local ward members, spoke objecting to the application.

The committee considered the application, with advice from officers where 
appropriate.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application with an amendment to 
condition 3 for further details on materials, was declared carried on being put to the 
vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P16/S1237/FUL, subject to 
the following conditions:

1. Commencement of development within three years.
2. Development to be carried out as specified in the approved plans.
3. Details of materials to be submitted for approval.

Page 19



4

4. Development to be carried out in accordance with submitted tree protection 
details.

5. Landscaping scheme (trees and shrubs only) to be agreed prior to the 
commencement of development.

6. Ancillary occupation and use of the approved garage.
7. Details of levels to be agreed prior to the commencement of development.
8. New vehicular access to be provided to highway specifications.
9. Turning area and car parking to be provided in accordance with the approved 

plans and retained.
10.Vision splay details to be agreed prior to occupation.
11.Vision splay dimensions for pedestrians to be provided prior to occupation.
12.Withdrawal of permitted development rights for extensions, roof extensions 

and outbuildings.
13.Rooflights on north elevations of dwellings to be 1.7 metres above cill level or 

obscure glazed.
14.Mitigation measures for bats to be implemented in accordance with approved 

details.
15.No surface water drainage to the highway.

103 P15/S3385/FUL - The Workshop, Newtown Road, Henley-on-
Thames 

Application P15/S3885/FUL was deferred to allow for a site visit to take place prior to 
being considered by the planning committee at a later date.

104 P15/S4131/RM - Land adjoining Greenwood Avenue, Chinnor 

Ian White, one of the local ward councillors, stepped down from the committee and 
took no part in the debate or voting on this item.   

The committee considered reserved matters application P15/S4131/RM, following 
outline permission P14/S0953/O, to approve the appearance, landscaping, layout 
and scale on land adjoining Greenwood Avenue, Chinnor.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Officer update: since publication of the agenda, the officer updated committee on the 
following:

 The applicant has been in further discussions with Chinnor parish council and 
has since amended the plans to move the three storey apartment block away 
from neighbouring properties, to the centre of the site and to change the 
garages to car ports.

 There will be an extra condition to remove permitted development rights to 
change the car ports into garages in the future.

 Due to the changes in plots above, condition 3 should now read 69 rather than 
72,

 The parish council has requested that parking should be restricted in the 
central open space, which the applicant has agreed to condition.

 The environmental health officer’s assessment on the noise impact of the 
railway is not solely based on evidence within the report, but on background 
knowledge and awareness of the situation.

Page 20



5

Lorna Juarez, the applicant, spoke in support of the application. 

Ian White, one of the local ward members, spoke in support of the application. 

The committee considered the application, with advice from officers where 
appropriate; they were complimentary about the approach the applicant had taken in 
pro-actively resolving issues with the parish council.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant reserved matters approval for application P15/S4131/RM, 
subject to the following conditions:

1. Commencement date no later than two years.
2. Development in accordance with approved plans.
3. Removal of permitted development rights for rear windows in plot 69.
4. Parking to be provided and retained.
5. No garage conversion into accommodation without prior approval.
6. Details of screening to pumping station to be agreed.
7. Removal of permitted development rights to enclose carports.
8. Parking restriction in the central open space.

105 P15/S3848/FUL - Goodson Industrial Mews, Wellington Street, 
Thame 

The committee considered application P15/S3848/FUL to redevelop Goodsons 
Industrial Mews on Wellington Street, Thame.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Mike Dyer, a representative of Thame town council, spoke objecting to the 
application. His concerns included the following:

 New evidence would indicate that the units have not been marketed 
effectively, whereby agents would warn off potential tenants; and

 There is an unmet need for employment space in Thame.

Alun Rowe, a local businessman, spoke objecting to the application. His concerns 
included the following:

 His company have been searching for suitable accommodation in Thame for 
ten months;

 He is aware of other businesses looking for premises; and
 The message from the estate agent when enquiring about this site was that it 

was due for redevelopment, it would be unpleasant to occupy any units and 
that only short term lets were available.

David Parker, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application. His speech 
included the following:

 During his two year involvement, they have followed best practice and 
involved the public and town council;

Page 21



6

 The town council welcome the underground parking element;
 The design is site specific, having undertaken a local character assessment;
 Units 6,7 and 8 have been empty for three years;
 Can apply condition to retain employment use in better condition units; and
 There would be an external makeover of an ugly site, decontamination, 

drainage CiL and S106 contributions and gardens incorporated.

Nigel Champken-Woods, one of the local ward members, spoke objecting to the 
application. His concerns included the following:

 Share concerns of loss of employment space to serve a growing population.

The committee considered the application, with advice from officers where 
appropriate; the discussion included the following points:

 A commercial viability report has been submitted and three estate agents have 
been responsible for marketing the site; and

 Disappointed about the loss of an employment space, but realise that the 
applicant could convert some of the office space to residential within permitted 
development rights, without any of the additional benefits that go with this 
particular scheme.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to delegate authority to grant planning permission for application 
P15/S3848/FUL to the head of planning subject to:

i) The prior completion of a Section 106 agreement to secure the affordable 
housing, financial contributions and other obligations stated above; and

ii) The following conditions:

1. Commencement three years – full planning permission.
2. Approved plans.
3. Removal of permitted development rights to convert retained commercial 

buildings.
4. Materials to be agreed.
5. Levels to be agreed.
6. Landscaping scheme and management to be agreed.
7. Rear bathroom in house 15 to be obscure glazed.
8. Removal of permitted development rights for further windows in rear of 15.
9. Details of boundary treatments to be agreed.
10.Details of bin storage to be agreed.
11.Access in accordance with highway authority’s specification.
12.Vision splay to be provided / retained.
13.Car parking spaces to be provided and retained.
14.Cycle parking facilities to be provided.
15.Construction traffic management plan.
16.Surface water drainage to be agreed.
17.Foul drainage works to be agreed.
18.Preparation of an archaeological written scheme of investigation.
19.Staged programme of archaeological evaluation and mitigation.
20.Air quality mitigation to be agreed.
21.Contaminated land investigation / remediation to be agreed.
22.Construction hours restriction.

Page 22



7

23.Measures to reduce noise and dust to be agreed.
24.Details of external lighting to be agreed.

106 P16/S0242/O - Robinsgrove, Satwell Close, Rotherfield Greys 

The committee considered application P16/S0242/O for outline planning permission 
to erect a new two storey dwelling and garage at Robinsgrove, Satwell Close, 
Rotherfield Greys.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Officer update: A late email has been received from residents in Satwell Close.  The 
officer also clarified that the access is already existing and would not represent 
significant harm.

Henry Venners, the objectors’ agent, Claire Ross and Matt Ellard, local residents, 
spoke objecting to the application. Their concerns included the following:

 The access is not suitable and would be contrary to policy in providing a safe 
and convenient access;

 Any extra traffic would be dangerous; and
 If approved, the residents request removal of permitted development rights to 

avoid windows on western and eastern elevations.

Neil Boddington, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application. His 
speech included the following:

 There is no objection to the Shepherds Hill road access;
 Access onto Satwell Close is acceptable; and
 Greenery will be taken off the corner to improve visibility.

The committee considered the application, with advice from officers where 
appropriate.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant outline planning permission for application P16/S0242/O 
subject to the following conditions:

1. Commencement of development within three years or two years of reserved 
matters approval.

2. Development to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans.
3. Reserved matters in relation to scale, appearance and landscaping to be 

submitted.
4. Materials to be agreed prior to commencement of development.
5. Landscaping scheme to be agreed prior to commencement of development.
6. Tree protection measures to be agreed prior to commencement of 

development.
7. Turning area and car parking details to be agreed prior to commencement of 

development.
8. Vision splays to be provided in accordance with submitted details prior to 

occupation.
Page 23



8

9. No garage conversion into accommodation.
10.Surface water drainage works to be agreed prior to occupation.
11.Foul drainage works to be agreed prior to occupation.

107 P16/S1613/FUL - Lower Cross Road, Blewbury Road, East 
Hagbourne 

The committee considered application P16/S1613/FUL to alter and extend the 
existing garage and accommodation to form a two bedroom self-catering holiday 
home on Lower Cross Road, East Hagbourne.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

The committee considered the application, with advice from officers where 
appropriate.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P16/S1613/FUL subject to 
the following conditions:

1. Commencement within three years.
2. In accordance with approved plans.
3. Materials of extension to match those on the existing building.
4. Removal of permitted development rights Class E – outbuildings.
5. Removal of permitted development rights Class A – extensions.
6. Details of boundary treatment to be submitted.
7. Turning area and parking area to be retained.
8. Driveway to be widened to 4.5m for a length of 10m.

108 P16/S2594/FUL  - 1 Wrightson Close, Horspath 

The committee considered application P16/S2594/FUL to erect a two bedroom 
bungalow on land to the side of 1 Wrightson Close, Horspath.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Officer update: a legal covenant had been circulated to members of the committee, 
however this is a civil not a planning matter.

Gaynor Mackenzie, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application. 

A J Price, the applicant, spoke in support of the application. 

The committee considered the application, with advice from officers where 
appropriate; the discussion included the following points:

Page 24



9

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P16/S2594/FUL subject to 
the following conditions:

1. Work to commence within three years.
2. In accordance with plans.
3. Materials as on plans.
4. Parking spaces as indicated on plan to be useable prior to occupation of the 

approved dwelling, and sustainable drainage scheme compliant.
5. New vehicular access.
6. Vision splays.
7. Gravel retention strip across access.
8. Boundary detailing in place prior to occupation.
9. Tree protection (general).
10.Removal of permitted development rights of proposed dwelling – Class A 

(enlargement / alteration), Class B (roof alterations / dormer windows), Class 
D (porch), Class E (outbuildings).

109 P16/S2292/FUL and P16/S2293/FUL - The Farmhouse and 
Breach Farm Barn, Breach Farm, Wheatley Road, Stanton St John 

The committee considered applications P16/S2292/FUL and P16/S2293/FUL to 
remove conditions on agricultural occupancy at The Farmhouse and Breach Farm 
Barn, Breach Farm, Wheatley Road, Stanton St John. The proposal included 
transferring the agricultural occupancy to two other dwellings on-site by legal 
agreement: Blackberry Cottage and Bramble Cottage.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

David Polgreen, a representative of Stanton St John parish council, spoke objecting 
to the application. 

Robin Bradbeer, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application. 

John Walsh, one of the local ward councillors, spoke objecting to the application.

The committee considered the application, with advice from officers where 
appropriate; the discussion included the following points:

 Questioning if the business was expanding and successful, why would the 
agriculturally tied accommodation be changed to smaller properties? Larger 
accommodation would be more suitable for a family.

 Concern that properties had been built within the greenbelt to provide for much 
needed tied agricultural properties and not used as such.

 A request for further information regarding agricultural ties.

Contrary to the officer’s recommendation, a motion, moved and seconded, to refuse 
the applications P16/S2292/FUL and P16/S2293/FUL was withdrawn.

Page 25



10

A motion, moved and seconded, to defer both applications was declared carried on 
being put to the vote, to receive expert advice on agricultural tie policy.

RESOLVED: To defer the decision to grant planning permission for applications 
P16/S2292/FUL and P16/S2293/FUL.

110 P16/S2338/FUL - 1 Henley Road, Sandford-on-Thames 

The committee considered application P16/S2338/FUL to sub-divide the existing 
four-bedroom house to provide one two-bedroom and one one-bedroom dwelling at 1 
Henley Road, Sandford-on-Thames.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this 
meeting.

Gareth Bertram, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

Sue Lawson, the local ward councillor spoke objecting to the application.

The committee considered the application, with advice from officers where 
appropriate; the discussion included the following points:

 Concern that the applicant has a history of building extensions and applying 
for retrospective planning permission to sub-divide properties;

 Although there are no grounds for refusing the application, the committee were 
not happy with the approach that had been taken.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application, was declared carried on 
being put to the vote 

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P16/S2338/FUL subject to 
the following conditions:

1. Commencement three years - full planning permission.
2. Approved plans.
3. Vision splay details.
4. Parking and manoeuvring areas retained.

The meeting closed at 9.40 pm

Chairman Date

Page 26



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

APPLICATION NO. P16/S1400/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 25.5.2016
PARISH BINFIELD HEATH
WARD MEMBERS Will Hall & Paul Harrison
APPLICANT Justin Knott
SITE Corbiere, Dunsden Way, Binfield Heath
PROPOSAL Demolition of existing garage and erection of two-

storey 4-bedroom dwelling and formation of new 
access to the south of approved replacement 
dwelling (footprint of dwelling reduced and moved 
further from southern boundary as shown on 
amended plan received 28 July 2016).

AMENDMENTS See above
OFFICER Paul Lucas

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 This application is referred to the Planning Committee as a result of a difference in 

views between Binfield Heath Parish Council and the officers’ recommendation. 
Officers recommend that planning permission should be granted. This report explains 
how we have reached this conclusion.

1.2 The site is identified at Appendix 1 and lies within the built-up confines of the village 
of Binfield Heath on the eastern side of Dunsden Way. The application site previously 
contained a detached bungalow with a single detached garage. These structures have 
been demolished and the site now contains a recently constructed detached two-
storey replacement dwelling constructed from brick and flint and clay tiles located 
towards the northern end of the site with a new vehicular access and planning 
permission for a carport in front of it. The southern part of the site has been separated 
from the dwelling by a close-boarded fence and the vehicular access that previously 
belonged to the original dwelling remains. The site is bordered by the side and rear 
garden of No.1 Chapel Cottages to the south, open countryside to the east, a farm 
track to the north (with three dwellings opposite) and Dunsden Way to the west (with 
four dwellings opposite). The site has high hedging around most of the site 
boundaries and there are some semi-mature trees on No.1’s side of the boundary. It 
does not fall within any areas of special designation.

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 The application seeks full planning permission for the erection of a two storey 4-

bedroom dwelling on the southern part of the site, using the existing access to provide 
off-site parking in front of the dwelling. The original plans were amended, as set out in 
the description above, in order to address officers’ concerns.

2.2 Copies of the current plans are provided at Appendix 2 whilst other documentation 
associated with the application can be viewed on the Council’s website: 
www.southoxon.gov.uk.

Page 27

Agenda Item 7

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/S1400/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 Binfield Heath Parish Council – The original and revised plans should be refused for 

the following reasons:
The first plan for House 2 was for a five bedroom house, which attracted fourteen 
objections, mostly very vociferous, which presumably resulted in the current 
amendment. The new version has lost a bedroom and the garage, though the footprint 
is only slightly reduced, so the site is still over-developed.
The parking area looks far too tight and conflicts with the parking requirements of 
House 1.
Planning permission was granted for House 1 (P15/S4100/FUL) subject to several 
conditions. Condition 4 stipulated that it should not be occupied until the parking and 
turning areas had been provided in accordance with the specified plan: those areas 
were included in what is now the House 2 site and there has been no subsequent 
amendment to House 1 plans for a new opening on to the road.
Planning officers may consider this is basic to the House 1 consent, which would not 
have been granted otherwise, particularly as in his application the applicant stated that 
it was not proposed to form any new type of gate piers or gates. If that turns out to be 
the case then it would affect the House 2 application as the applicant will not want an 
un-occupiable house.
The Parish Council maintains its previously submitted objections to this second house 
on the grounds of over development of the site.

Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) - No objection subject to 
conditions

Countryside Officer (South Oxfordshire & Vale of White Horse) - No objections

Forestry Officer (South Oxfordshire District Council) - No objections subject to 
conditions

Neighbours – 14 households have submitted representations of objection, summarised 
as follows:

 This is development by stealth and should have been included in the application 
for the existing house

 The creation of nine bedrooms on this site would lead to insufficient on-street 
parking resulting in on-street parking on Dunsden Way, obstructing the nearby 
bus stop and dangerous for highway and pedestrian safety.

 New driveway adding to highway and pedestrian safety concerns.
 Two dwellings are too large for the site representing an urban form of 

development out of keeping with the nearby cottages in this rural area.
 Loss of light, outlook and privacy to No’s 1 & 2 Chapel Cottages and their 

gardens and the dwellings oppposite the site.
 Harmful to wildlife in adjoining countryside.
 Contrary to Binfield Heath Community Led Plan in relation to the rejection of 

high density development by the community.
 Further disruption to neighbours from an extended construction process.
 Loss of views of the countryside

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 P16/S2204/HH – Approved (20/08/2016)

Erection of two-bay carport and formation of vehicular access (roof of carport changed 
to full hip, moved further from western boundary and boundary hedge retained, as 
shown on amended plan received 21st July 2016).

Page 28



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

P15/S4100/FUL - Approved (18/02/2016)
Demolish existing dwelling and erection of new dwelling.

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy policies

CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSEN1  -  Landscape protection
CSH2  -  Housing density
CSM1  -  Transport
CSQ2  -  Sustainable design and construction
CSQ3  -  Design
CSR1  -  Housing in villages
CSS1  -  The Overall Strategy

5.2 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 policies;
C4  -  Landscape setting of settlements
C9  -  Loss of landscape features
D1  -  Principles of good design
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
D3  -  Outdoor amenity area
D4  -  Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers
D10  -  Waste Management
EP6  -  Sustainable drainage
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
H4  -  Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016

Binfield Heath Community Led Plan

5.3 National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance
The policies within the SOCS and the SOLP 2011 of relevance to this application are 
considered to be in general conformity with the provisions of the NPPF and therefore 
this application can be determined against the relevant policies above.

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The planning issues that are relevant to this application are whether the development 

would:
 be acceptable in principle in this location;
 result in the loss of an open space or view of public, environmental or ecological 

value;
 be in keeping with the character and appearance of the surrounding area;
 safeguard the living conditions of neighbouring residential occupiers and would 

provide suitable living conditions for future occupiers;
 demonstrate an acceptable provision of off-street parking spaces for the 

resultant dwellings or cause conditions prejudicial to highway safety; and
 give rise to any other material planning considerations

6.2 Principle of Development
The Development Plan policy relevant to this proposal is the SOCS Policy CSR1, which 
determines whether proposals for infill residential development in the District are 

Page 29

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P15/S4100/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

acceptable in principle. The SOCS classifies Binfield Heath as a “smaller village”. 
Under Policy CSR1, residential development on infill sites of up to 0.2 hectares in size 
is acceptable in principle in “smaller villages”. The supporting text for Policy CSR1 
states, “Infill development is defined as the filling of a small gap in an otherwise built up 
frontage, or on other sites within settlements where the site is closely surrounded by 
buildings.” In officers’ opinion, the site lies in between frontage development on the 
eastern side of Dunsden Way, within the main built-up confines of the settlement. The 
overall site size is 0.2 hectares, with the area to be developed closer to 0.05 hectares. 
Under these circumstances, officers consider that the principle of housing on the site is 
currently acceptable. Consequently the proposal falls to be assessed primarily against 
the criteria of Policy H4 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 for new dwellings, 
which are addressed below.

6.3 Loss of Open Space
Criterion (i) of Policy H4 of the SOLP 2011 requires that an important open space of 
public, environmental or ecological value is not lost, nor an important public view spoilt. 
The site is not accessible to the public and the Council’s Countryside Officer is satisfied 
that there are no protected species or habitats on the site. The site is visible in public 
views from Dunsden Way to the south of the site, however from these vantage points 
the development of the site with two dwellings would be seen in the context of the 
dwellings on either side. Given that there has been an established hedgerow along 
much of the frontage, it could not be said to result in the loss of an important public 
view. On this basis, the proposal would be in compliance with the above criterion.

6.4 Visual Impact
Criterion (ii) of Policy H4 of the SOLP 2011 requires that the design, height, scale and 
materials of the proposed development are in keeping with its surroundings and 
criterion (iii) requires that the character of the area is not affected. Policy CSEN1 of the 
SOCS aims to protect the District’s distinct landscape character from inappropriate 
development. Policies CSQ3 of the SOCS and D1 of the SOLP 2011 expand on this 
requirement in respect of ensuring good design. Local residents and Binfield Heath 
Parish Council have raised objection to the introduction of a second dwelling on the site 
making the density out of character with the rural surroundings. Whilst plot sizes vary in 
this part of the village, the proposed building to plot ratio would be about 25% and there 
are several dwellings with similar plot coverage in the vicinity of the site. There would 
be an 8.4 metre gap between the side walls of the existing and proposed dwellings on 
the site. The gap to the boundary with No.1 would be 4 metres at the front, reducing to 
2.5 metres at the rear. Under the circumstances that spaces between dwellings vary 
considerably in the locality, sufficient space would be retained around the dwelling and 
the development would not result in an overdevelopment.

6.5 The proposed dwelling has been revised to remove the projecting front gable and to 
leave it with a catslide roof containing dormer windows, which is a traditional design 
approach and would appear more recessive in comparison with the recently 
constructed replacement dwelling. The proportions of the building would give rise to a 
similar ridge height of 8.4 metres to the adjacent new dwelling. The width would be 
about 5.5 metres smaller, to take account of the smaller size of the newly formed plot in 
relation to the remaining plot to the north. The proposed materials of facing bricks and 
clay tiles would be acceptable in this area. Interested parties are also concerned that 
the proposed dwelling would not reflect the appearance of several cottages close to the 
site. Nonetheless, there are a number of house types within the locality and the 
development would be in keeping with the general character of the area. The Council’s 
Forestry Officer has confirmed that hedges within the site shown to be retained could 
be secured though a planning condition and tree protection measures could also be 
applied to safeguard the trees in the garden of No.1 during the development process. In 

Page 30



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

the light of the above assessment, the proposal would accord with the above policies.

6.6 Residential Amenity Impact
Criterion (iv) of Policy H4 of the SOLP 2011 requires that there are no overriding 
amenity objections. Policy D4 of the SOLP 2011 requires that all new dwellings should 
be designed and laid out so as to secure a reasonable degree of privacy for the 
occupiers. The main impact of the proposed dwelling would be on the rear aspect of 
No.1 Chapel Cottages. The side elevation of the proposed dwelling would face towards 
the rear of No.1 and would be visible from rear facing windows serving habitable rooms 
at both ground and first floor level. The distance from the closest part of No.1 is about 
18 metres. Section 7 of the SODG 2016 explains that the minimum distance in such 
situations to preserve residential amenity should be 12 metres. The proposal would 
achieve this distance. It is also notable that the proposed dwelling lies to the north and 
would only adjoin part of the rear garden boundary where there are trees within the 
neighbour’s garden that would offer some screening during part of the year. This would 
mean that there would be no loss of direct sunlight and the impact on daylight and 
outlook would be partially alleviated. The rear of No.1 is angled north-eastwards rather 
than directly north so that the occupiers would continue to retain some open aspect 
alongside the rear garden of the proposed dwelling and their boundary with the field to 
the north-east.

6.7 The proposed dwelling would be over 30 metres from the dwellings opposite. Although 
the proposed dwelling would be apparent from these dwellings, given the distances 
involved would be significantly greater than the minimum 10 metre standard set out in 
Section 7 in the SODG 2016, officers consider that there would not be any significant 
loss of light or outlook that would be sufficient to warrant refusal of planning permission. 
There would be no discernible impact on Hampstead Cottages due to the distance 
involved and the location of the adjacent dwelling on the site.

6.8 There are first floor windows serving bedrooms in the south elevation of the new 
dwelling to the north, but these would face directly onto the north-facing side wall of the 
proposed dwelling and so would not result in any undue loss of privacy. The first floor 
window in this north-facing side elevation of the proposed dwelling would serve an en-
suite and could therefore be subject to an obscure glazing condition. There is a rear 
balcony on the new dwelling, but as this is about 18 metres from the boundary with the 
proposed dwelling’s rear garden, any overlooking would not be significant. The 
proposed dwelling would have a rear garden area of about 125 square metres, which 
would accord with the recommended minimum standard of 100 square metres for a 
dwelling of this size. On the basis of the above assessment, the proposal would be in 
accordance with the above policies.

6.9 Access and Parking
Criterion (iv) of Policy H4 of the SOLP 2011 also requires that there are no overriding 
highway objections. Although there have been a number of concerns raised about 
highway and pedestrian safety, the Highway Liaison Officer (HLO) has raised no 
objections to the proposed access and parking arrangements, subject to the imposition 
of several highway-related conditions. The parking allocation provided within the 
development meets current maximum parking standards. The proposed access for the 
existing dwelling has already been granted planning permission under planning 
permission P16/S2204/HH and has been constructed. This was found to meet 
requirements in terms of visibility splays, with the existing access is to be used for the 
new dwelling. It is the HLO’s opinion that the vehicle movements associated with the 
proposed dwelling do not present “severe harm” as required by Paragraph 32 the 
NPPF.

Page 31



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

6.10 Other Material Planning Considerations
The Community Led Plan is a non-statutory document and is not designed to deal with 
land use planning, which is a role performed instead by Neighbourhood Plans. As such, 
any conflict with the Community Led Plan carries only limited weight when balanced 
against the policies in the Development Plan and Supplementary Planning Guidance. 
As the proposal involves the net gain of only one dwelling, it is not possible to apply the 
SOCS Policy CSH4 to require a mix of dwellings to be provided. A condition removing 
permitted development rights for various householder development is considered 
necessary to allow the Council to exercise control over any future additions to the new 
dwelling that might otherwise result in visual harm or loss of amenity to adjoining 
residential properties. Issues concerning the impact of the recently constructed dwelling 
or the manner in which it was built are not matters that are directly relevant to this 
application and nuisance or obstruction from construction activities could be dealt with 
by other legislation. The proposed dwelling is liable for the Community Infrastructure 
Levy (CIL). The CIL charge applied to new residential development in this case is £150 
per square metre of additional floorspace (Zone 1). 15% of the CIL payment would go 
Binfield Heath Parish Council in the absence of an adopted Neighbourhood Plan.

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 The application proposal would comply with the other relevant Development Plan 

Policies, Supplementary Planning Guidance and Government Guidance and it is 
considered that, subject to the attached conditions, the proposed development would 
be acceptable in principle and would not materially harm the character and appearance 
of the area or the living conditions of nearby residents or result in conditions prejudicial 
to highway safety.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
8.1 To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions: 

1. Commencement of development within three years. 
2. Development to be in accordance with approved plans.
3. Details of levels required prior to commencement.
4. Schedule of materials required prior to commencement.
5. Obscure glazing to the north facing en-suite window.
6. Withdrawal of permitted development rights for extensions, roof 

extensions and outbuildings.
7. Parking and manoeuvring areas retained as on the approved plan.
8. No surface water drainage to the public highway.
9. Details of landscaping (including hardsurfacing and boundary treatment) 

required prior to commencement.
10. Details of tree and hedge protection required prior to commencement.

Author:         Paul Lucas
Email:           Planning@southandvale.gov.uk
Telephone:  01235 422600

Page 32

mailto:Planning@southandvale.gov.uk


Printed on 06/06/2016 10:25:55
   for BCP

This map is reproduced from Ordance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery Office Crown copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings
South Oxfordshire District Council / 100018668 / 2016

Reference:P16/S1400/FUL

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



Page 34



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

APPLICATION NO. P16/S2650/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 3.8.2016
PARISH WATLINGTON
WARD MEMBER Anna Badcock
APPLICANT Jamie and Oliver Curtis
SITE Newlands, Platts Lane, Northend, RG9 6LQ
PROPOSAL Removal of Condition 2 on planning permission 

P12/S2526/FUL to enable the permanent retention 
of the use of land for the stationing of a residential 
mobile home.

AMENDMENTS None
OFFICER Marc Pullen

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.2 The site (which is shown on the OS extract attached as Appendix A) lies down Platts 

Lane off the main road running through Northend. The site lies within the Chilterns 
AONB.  

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 This application seeks full planning permission to remove condition 2 of permission 

P12/S2526/FUL to allow for permanent residence of the existing mobile home. 

2.2 A copy of all the current plans accompanying the application is attached as Appendix 
B.  Other documentation associated with the application can be viewed on the council’s 
website, www.southoxon.gov.uk.

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 Watlington Parish Council – Object

 There have been no material difference or special circumstances that have 
been provided by the applicant to justify granting planning permission

Countryside Access - No strong views; subject to informative
Health & Housing - Env. Protection Team - No strong views; subject to informative
Neighbours – 4 letters of objection

 The granting of permanence should not be allowed, would go against planning 
guidance

 The current occupants have not lived there permanently over the past couple of 
years

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 P12/S2526/FUL - Approved (11/03/2013)

Retain the use of land for the stationing of a residential caravan/mobile home.

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework & National Planning Practice Guidance

5.2 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 2012 policies; 
CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSEN1  -  Landscape protection
CSH5  -  Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople

Page 35

Agenda Item 8

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/S2650/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P12/S2526/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

CSQ3  -  Design
CSR1  -  Housing in villages
CSS1  -  The Overall Strategy

5.3 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 policies; 
C4  -  Landscape setting of settlements
D1  -  Principles of good design
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
D3  -  Outdoor amenity area
D4  -  Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers
D10  -  Waste Management
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
H15  -  New residential caravans and mobile homes
H17  -  Provision of gypsy caravan sites
R8  -  Protection of existing public right of way
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

5.4 South Oxfordshire Design Guide 

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The main considerations in the determination of this application are

 Principle of development 
 Impact on character and appearance of site and surrounding area
 Impact on neighbours
 Impact on the highway
 Other matters

Principle of development 

6.2 Policy CSH5 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) assists the delivery of 
pitches for Gypsy, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople. In addition to this, Policy H17 
of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan (SOLP) assists the delivery of gypsy caravan sites. 
Both should be read together and in conjunction with the NPPF. The latter specifies 
that new sites should not be located within the Chilterns AONB and should not have 
any detrimental impact on the landscape or the landscape setting of settlements. Policy 
CSH5 of the SOCS seeks to ensure that the supply of pitches are provided through 
utilising existing sites, extending existing sites if possible or by new sites identified by a 
site allocations process.  

6.3 Current Government Planning Policy on Travellers Sites, (PPTS, 2015) stipulates that 
in determining planning applications for traveller sites, council’s should determine them 
in accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. Applications should be assessed and determined in accordance with the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development and the application of specific 
policies in the NPPF and the PPTS.  

6.4 The Council are currently unable to demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable sites 
for Gypsy and Traveller pitches. In addition the Council’s Gypsy, Traveller and 
Travelling Showpeople Accommodation Needs Assessment (2014 update), identified a 
need to find new sites within the South Oxfordshire District to deliver 18 additional 
Gypsy and Traveller pitches, of which this site is acknowledged as a temporary site 
which contributes to this need. Without this site the need would be 19. 

6.5 The PPTS continues to state that if a local planning authority cannot demonstrate an 

Page 36



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

up–to-date 5 year supply of deliverable sites, this should be a significant material 
consideration in any subsequent planning decision when considering applications for 
the grant of temporary planning permission. It does however stipulate that exceptions to 
this rule are when sites fall within certain land designations, of which AONBs are one. 
In the absence of a 5 year supply however officers consider that it is reasonable to 
balance the harm to the AONB with the need for new sites/pitches. 

6.6 This site has recently been granted temporary permission in 2012 (P12/S2526/FUL). At 
the time of this application the council were unable to demonstrate an up-to-date 5 year 
supply of deliverable sites and as such followed the procedure as identified within the 
PPTS to grant temporary permission. Condition 2 of this approval reads: 

The use hereby permitted shall be for a limited period being the period until the 31 
December 2016. At the end of this period the use hereby permitted shall cease 
and all caravans, mobile homes, buildings, structures, materials and equipment 
brought on to or erected on the land, or works undertaken in connection with the 
use shall be permanently removed from the site.

Reason: Permission is granted for a temporary period until the council has 
identified new sites for gypsies and travellers in accordance with policy CSH5 of 
the Development Plan. 

6.7 In addition to this a condition was attached which restricted occupation to the applicants 
and their dependent children. It is noted that this current application is made on behalf 
of the same applicants. 

6.8 Paragraph 24 of the PPTS advises that Local planning authorities should consider the 
following issues amongst other relevant matters when considering planning applications 
for traveller sites such as the existing level of local provision and need for sites; the 
availability (or lack) of alternative accommodation for the applicants and other personal 
circumstances of the applicant. As previously identified within this report there is an 
undersupply of sites for travellers and there is a great need for new sites to come 
forward to meet this undersupply. In addition to this there is no capacity on existing 
Vale or County Council sites. The need for sites therefore should be given substantial 
weight in the assessment of this application.

6.9 Subject to an assessment on the harm to the AONB and other material considerations, 
officers consider that another grant of temporary permission for the applicants would be 
appropriate. This would allow the Council to undergo a site scoping and allocation 
process under the new Local Plan (2032) for additional traveller pitches. 

Whether the applicant’s meet the definition of ‘gypsies and travellers’

6.10 Having regard to Annex 1 of the PPTS, the definition of ‘gypsies and travellers’ means: 

Persons of nomadic habit of life whatever their race or origin, including such 
persons who on grounds only of their own or their family’s or dependants’ 
educational or health needs or old age have ceased to travel temporarily, but 
excluding members of an organised group of travelling showpeople or circus 
people travelling together as such. 

6.11 In determining whether persons are “gypsies and travellers” for the purposes of the 
PPTS, consideration should be given to the following issues amongst other relevant 
matters:

a) whether they previously led a nomadic habit of life

Page 37

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P12/S2526/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

b) the reasons for ceasing their nomadic habit of life
c) whether there is an intention of living a nomadic habit of life in the future, and 
if so, how soon and in what circumstances

6.12 Information submitted in support of this application states that the applicants have not 
given up their travels and that they use this site as their permanent base, from which 
they pursue their nomadic way of life. The circumstances of their gypsy lifestyle has not 
changed since the previous application and therefore officers accept their status as 
gypsy and travellers. 

Impact on character and appearance of AONB

6.13 Policy CSEN1 of the Development Plan states that high priority will be given to the 
conservation and enhancement of the Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 
The site is located on the edge of the settlement of Northend and although not 
especially prominent in the landscape, is clearly visible from the adjacent public 
footpath. The mobile home is generally out of keeping with the area and officers do 
consider that it does impact on the distinctiveness of the area and does not conserve or 
enhance the Chilterns landscape. Although, the siting and design of the home would 
not change as a result of this application and the associated landscaping would remain 
the same. 

6.14 The previous impact upon the prevailing character and the AONB was previously 
assessed as not substantial when weighed up against the shortfall of sites for travellers. 
Owing to this previous assessment and to the persistent issue of under supply of sites 
for travellers, officers consider that the harm would only be temporary, and not be 
substantial enough to overcome temporary harm caused by the granting of temporary 
planning permission. A temporary permission would allow for additional traveller sites to 
have been found through a site scoping and allocation process under the new Local 
Plan (2032).  

Impact on neighbours

6.15 Officers are satisfied that the existing circumstances would not be altered by this 
development, therefore ensuring that neighbours amenity would continue to be 
safeguarded against harm. 

Impact on highways

6.16 Officers are satisfied that the existing circumstances would not be altered by this 
development, therefore ensuring that harm to highway safety would not occur. 

Planning balance

6.17 Officers consider that, notwithstanding references within the PPTS which advises not to 
grant temporary planning permission within AONBs, the granting of temporary 
permission for an additional 3 years would be reasonable here given the limited harm 
on the Chilterns AONB, neighbours and the highway network and the persistent 
undersupply of new sites/pitches. An additional 3 year time period would allow for the 
new Local Plan (2032) to scope and allocate for a new Gypsy and Traveller site(s) to 
meet the current and future need for pitches. 

Page 38



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 In circumstances where there remains a shortfall in the provision of gypsy and traveller 

sites and having regard to the fact that a mobile home creates limited harm to the 
surrounding area and the Chilterns AONB, it is recommended to grant a temporary 
planning permission for this site. 

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
8.1 To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions: 

1. Temporary use of building for three years from date of permission.
2. Development to be implemented in accordance with the approved plans.
3. Occupation by the Curtis family only.
4. That the site shall only be used for the stationing of one mobile home and 

one touring caravan.

Author: Marc Pullen
Contact No: 01235 422600
Email: planning@southoxon.gov.uk

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

Page 41

Agenda Item 8

PullenM
Rectangle



Appendix B

Page 42



Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

APPLICATION NO. P16/S1955/HH
APPLICATION TYPE HOUSEHOLDER
REGISTERED 8.8.2016
PARISH CHINNOR
WARD MEMBERS Ian White & Lynn Lloyd
APPLICANT Mr Jim Lewis
SITE Bridleway Barn, Spriggs Alley, Chinnor Hill
PROPOSAL Erection of single storey extension and addition of 

rooflight to detached dwelling, construction of 
driveway and erection of detached two-bay garage 
(Garage repositioned and ridge height specified as 
shown on amended plans received 15th September 
2016).

AMENDMENTS As above
OFFICER Paul Lucas

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 This application is referred to the Planning Committee as a result of a call-in from a 

District Councillor. Officers recommend that planning permission should be granted. 
This report explains how we have reached this conclusion.

1.2 The site is identified at Appendix 1 and comprises a recently-formed residential plot 
belonging to a loose-knit group of dwellings forming a hamlet called Spriggs Alley 
along a narrow road on the Chilterns Escarpment within the Chilterns AONB. The 
existing two-bedroom dwelling contains first floor accommodation within the roof and 
has timber clad walls and a natural slate roof. It was erected on the site of a barn, 
which has been mostly demolished and will replace a dwelling located to the south of 
the site known as The Tabernacle next to the road, which is due to be removed. A 
large two storey dwelling, Pond Farm is located to the west of the site. The land drops 
gradually from the road towards the site and then falls away more steeply to the north. 
The eastern site boundary is with a Chinnor Bridleway 31 that continues to the north 
and south of the site. There is also a public footpath crossing the field to the west of 
Pond Farm. There are no other special designations on this site.

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 The application seeks full planning permission for the erection of a single storey 

extension and addition of rooflight to detached dwelling, construction of driveway and 
erection of detached two-bay garage to serve the recently constructed dwelling. The 
original plans were amended to set the garage back from the boundary with the 
Bridleway. The amended block plan also shows that two of a group of three sheds 
would be removed from the site to make way for the garage. The remaining shed has 
been in that location for at least four years and is therefore a lawful structure. The block 
plan also shows that the remaining part of the barn would be removed, as it would have 
to be in order to allow light into the openings and rooms on the east elevation. The 
application is partly retrospective in that the rooflight has already been installed and the 
driveway has already been constructed.

2.2 A copy of the current plans is provided at Appendix 2 whilst other documents 
associated with the application can be viewed on the Council’s website: 
www.southoxon.gov.uk.

Page 45

Agenda Item 9

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/S1955/HH
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 Chinnor Parish Council – The application should be approved

Countryside Access - No objection subject to informatives

Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) - No objection subject to 
condition

Neighbours – Seven representations of objection and a petition of objection containing 
15 signatures, summarised as follows:

 Extension and garage out of keeping with AONB landscape
 Overdevelopment of the site, altering it completely from original appearance
 Dramatically larger than The Old Tabernacle
 New driveway makes site look cramped and overdeveloped
 Damaging to privacy of Pond Farm
 Precedent

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 P16/S1687/FUL - Approved (15/07/2016)

Replacement and enlargement of agricultural barn

P15/S3425/FUL - Approved (29/01/2016)
Replacement and re-siting of the existing dwelling at the Tabernacle including the re-
use of an established rural building (volume of proposed dwelling reduced, roof pitch 
lowered and dimensions added as shown on amended plans and supporting letter 
received 10 December 2015).

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy policies

CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSEN1  -  Landscape protection
CSQ2  -  Sustainable design and construction
CSQ3  -  Design
CSS1  -  The Overall Strategy

5.2 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 policies;
C4  -  Landscape setting of settlements
C9  -  Loss of landscape features
D1  -  Principles of good design
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
G4  -  Protection of Countryside
H13  -  Extension to dwelling
R8  -  Protection of existing public right of way
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 – Technical Document 6 – Householder 
Extensions and Outbuildings Technical Documents
South Oxfordshire Landscape Assessment – Character Area 9
Chilterns Buildings Design Guide – Chapter 3

5.3 National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance

Page 46

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/S1687/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P15/S3425/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

The policies within the SOCS and the SOLP 2011 of relevance to this application are 
considered to be in general conformity with the provisions of the NPPF and therefore 
this application can be determined against these relevant policies.

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The planning issues that are relevant to this application are whether the development 

would:
 be in keeping with the character and appearance of the original dwelling and the 

surrounding area including the Chilterns AONB landscape;
 respect the living conditions of neighbouring residential occupiers;
 result in an acceptable level of off-street parking spaces for the existing dwelling; 

and
 leave sufficient outdoor amenity space for future occupiers; and
 give rise to any other material planning considerations.

6.2 Visual Impact
Criterion (ii) of Policy H13 of the SOLP 2011 requires that the scale and design of 
proposed extensions are in keeping with the character of the dwelling and the site and 
with the appearance of the surrounding area. Policy CSEN1 of the SOCS explains that 
high priority will be given to conservation and enhancement of AONBs and planning 
decisions will have regard to their setting. The proposed extension would be a modest 
addition to the dwelling that would only be visible in views from the south along the 
bridleway. It would appear subservient when seen in the context of the existing dwelling 
with traditional matching materials. The double garage would be of a typical size for 
such structures, with a ridge height 1 metre lower than the main ridge. The revision to 
set it back from the boundary with the bridleway means that it would be largely 
obscured behind the dwelling in views from the north and in views from the south it 
would be seen in the context of the dwelling. It would be constructed with traditional 
materials that would match the original dwelling. The rooflight sits alongside three other 
approved rooflights on the eastern elevation. It is smaller than the other rooflights and 
does not detract from the appearance of the dwelling.

6.3 The driveway is quite long at around 60 metres, but is largely screened by the existing 
laurel hedge alongside the boundary with the bridleway. The advantage of the driveway 
being installed in comparison with the original plans, is that vehicular access to 
Bridleway Barn is no longer directly off the bridleway. This means that the garage faces 
away from the bridleway, thereby presenting a simpler elevation to public view. In 
addition, the applicant is prepared to plant an indigenous beech hedge along the whole 
of the boundary with the bridleway alongside the dwelling from where the laurel hedge 
stops. Under the approved plans for Bridleway Barn, the boundary was shown to be 
only partially planted with a sizeable gap for vehicular access. This hedge planting can 
be secured by a planning condition. In the light of the above assessment, officers 
consider that the various elements of the proposal would not detract from the natural 
beauty and special landscape qualities of the Chilterns AONB and would comply with 
the above policies and guidelines.

6.4 Neighbour Impact
Criterion (iii) of Policy H13 of the SOLP 2011 requires that ancillary buildings do not 
harm the residential amenity of occupants of nearby properties. The only dwelling that 
could be directly affected by the development would be Pond Farm, currently in the 
ownership of the applicant. The driveway would be about 20 metres from this dwelling 
at its closest point. The extension, garage and rooflight would have no discernible 
impact in terms of loss of light, outlook or privacy for the adjoining occupiers.

Page 47



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

6.5 Access and Parking
Criterion (v) of Policy H13 of the SOLP 2011 requires that satisfactory parking areas 
are provided. There would be no increase in the parking requirement for this dwelling 
and the garage would accommodate two vehicles, which would meet the standard for a 
dwelling of this size. The Highway Liaison Officer has raised no objection, subject to a 
condition to ensure the garage is retained for parking.

6.6

6.7

Outdoor Amenity Space Provision
Criterion (v) of Policy H13 of the SOLP 2011 requires that satisfactory amenity areas 
are provided for the host dwelling. The amount of remaining garden area would still 
accord with the recommended minimum standard of 100m2 for a dwelling of this size. 
The proposal would therefore comply with this criterion.

Other Material Planning Considerations
It is an established planning principle that each application must be determined on its 
individual merits. The impact of planning permission P15/S3425/FUL for the existing 
Bridleway Barn has been previously assessed and found to be acceptable. As the 
proposal would increase the floorspace by less than 100 square metres, the 
development is not CIL liable.

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 The proposed development would not detract from the natural beauty and landscape 

quality of the Chilterns AONB, would safeguard the living conditions of adjoining 
residents and would not be prejudicial to highway safety and would be in accordance 
with Development Plan Policies, Supplementary Planning Guidance and Government 
Guidance.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
8.1 To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions:

1. Commencement three years - full planning permission.
2. Planning permission to be implemented in accordance with approved 

plans. 
3. Materials to be implemented as on plan.
4. No garage conversion into accommodation.
5. New hedge to be provided along boundary with bridleway. 

Author:         Paul Lucas
Email:           Planning@southandvale.gov.uk
Telephone:  01235 422600

Page 48

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P15/S3425/FUL
mailto:Planning@southandvale.gov.uk


Printed on 15/06/2016 10:37:25
   for BCP

This map is reproduced from Ordance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery Office Crown copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings
South Oxfordshire District Council / 100018668 / 2016

Reference: P16/S1955/HH

Appendix 1

Page 49

Agenda Item 9



Appendix 2

Page 50

TrubyC
Typewritten Text
BLO 001 REVA

TrubyC_1
Typewritten Text



Page 51



P
age 52



P
age 53



P
age 54



Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

APPLICATION NO. P16/S2222/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 24.8.2016
PARISH THAME
WARD MEMBERS Jeannette Matelot, Nigel Champken-Woods, David 

Dodds
APPLICANT Mr Terry Guest
SITE 48 Park Street Thame, OX9 3HR
PROPOSAL Conversion of existing garage into a 1 bedroom 

bungalow.
AMENDMENTS None
GRID REFERENCE 471177/205477
OFFICER Marc Pullen

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 The application is referred to Planning Committee due to an objection from Thame 

Town Council.  

1.2 The site (which is shown on the OS extract attached as Appendix A) lies within the 
curtilage to the rear of 48 Park Street. The site falls within the Thame Conservation 
Area and is accessed off Victoria Mead.

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 This application seeks full planning permission to convert and alter/extend the existing 

garage building to create a single bed-dwelling. 

2.2 A copy of all the current plans accompanying the application is attached as Appendix 
B.  Other documentation associated with the application can be viewed on the council’s 
website, www.southoxon.gov.uk.

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 Thame Town Council – Object

 Loss of garage to serve existing property 
 Impact on character of Conservation Area and wider neighbourhood
 Backland development 

Thame Conservation Area Advisory Committee. – Object
 Over-development on this site. This would further increase traffic levels on the 

area which is already very congested
Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) - No strong views, subject to 
attaching conditions
Neighbours – 4 letters of objection

 Victoria Mead Residents Association own land to side of site, applicant would 
need to be granted permission to cross this land and to cut down any vegetation 
or remove any fencing

 Concerns with level of parking available – cars would likely park on Victoria 
Mead

 Property is not in keeping with the existing character of the street, where 
properties are set back from the road

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 N/A. 

Page 57

Agenda Item 10

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/S2222/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework & National Planning Practice Guidance

5.2 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 2012 policies; 
CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSEN3  -  Historic environment
CSQ3  -  Design
CSS1  -  The Overall Strategy

5.3 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 policies; 
CON7 – Conservation areas
D1  -  Principles of good design
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
D3  -  Outdoor amenity area
D4  -  Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers
D10  -  Waste Management
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
H4  -  Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

5.4 Thame Neighbourhood Plan policies: 
H5 – Integrate windfall sites
H6 – Design new development to be of high quality
ESDQ11 – Incorporate sustainable urban drainage
ESDQ16 – Development must relate well to its site and surroundings
ESDQ18 – Sense of place
ESDQ28 – Provide good quality outdoor space
ESDQ29 – Design car parking to fit in with character of the proposed development

5.5 South Oxfordshire Design Guide 

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1  Principle of residential use

 Impact on character and surrounding area
 Impact on neighbours
 Impact on highways / parking provision
 Other matters

Principle of housing development

6.2 The site is part of the town of Thame and in this location the principle of residential 
development is largely governed by Policy CSTHA1 of the South Oxfordshire Core 
Strategy (SOCS), which seeks to provide additional dwellings in the settlement through 
Neighbourhood Plan allocations and allow housing on suitable infill and redevelopment 
sites, elsewhere. The definition of infill is identified within the SOCS as ‘the filling of a 
small gap in an otherwise built-up frontage or on other sites within settlements where 
the site is closely surrounded by buildings’. Policy H5 of the Thame Neighbourhood 
Plan (TNP) supports the delivery of new dwellings through windfall (infill) sites, subject 
to good design. 

6.3 Officers consider that this site constitutes an acceptable infill proposal as it lies within 
close proximity to other buildings. Therefore this application complies with CSTHA1 of 

Page 58



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

the SOCS and partially with Policy H5 of the TNP. 

Impact on character and surrounding area

6.4 The NPPF confirms a presumption in favour of sustainable residential development, but 
also confirms a requirement for good design. The National Planning Practice Guidance 
2014 elaborates on the NPPF, stating that: “New development should look to respond 
appropriately to the existing layout of buildings, streets and spaces…there may be an 
existing prevailing layout that development should respond to and potentially improve” 
(Para 24). 

6.5 Criteria (ii) and (iii) of policy H4 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan (SOLP) seek to 
ensure that all new residential development is of a design, height, scale and 
appearance that is in keeping with its surroundings and that the character of an area is 
not adversely affected by the proposal. In addition policy CSQ3 of the SOCS seeks to 
ensure that all new development is of a high quality design which responds positively to 
and respects the character of the site and its surroundings, enhancing local 
distinctiveness and ensuring that new development is of a scale, type and density 
appropriate to the site and its setting. These aims are echoed within saved policies D1 
and G2 of the SOLP. Further to this there are a number of policies set out within the 
TNP covering issues of design, provision of quality outside amenity space and car 
parking. 

6.6 The site falls within the Thame Conservation Area and as such any development must 
be held against Policy CSEN3 of the SOCS and CON7 of the SOLP. These policies 
seek to enhance and conserve the historic interests of the district’s conservation areas.  

6.7 The immediate area is largely residential with some commercial use in close proximity 
to the south-east. Within Victoria Mead the properties display a typical and reoccurring 
design with a number of two storey semi-detached dwellings with private amenity 
spaces to the rear and parking to the front. This site is not typical of the plots within 
Victoria Mead area owing to the fact that it currently contains a building to the rear of 
the linear pattern of built form along Park Street. Park Street is linear in form and 
displays a number of semi-detached and terraced properties. Properties do vary in 
height but are predominantly two-storeys.

6.8 This site is backland to 48 and 49 Park Street but is accessed off Victoria Mead. The 
existing garage building is brick built with a slate roof and is relatively well spaced 
between nearby built form with an opportunity to syphon off some of the existing private 
amenity area to 49 Park Street to provide for private amenity space for the new 
dwelling. The pattern of development within the immediate area is not typical of the 
prevailing character of the Thame Conservation Area, with neighbouring Cresswell 
setting a precedent of backland development. The parking area would remain the same 
and be utilised to be shared by this development and neighbouring Cresswell. 

6.9 The development seeks to re-orientate the property, keep to the same footprint and 
increase the height by 2.2 metres and provide an active frontage along Victoria Mead – 
an attempt to be in keeping with the facade of this cul-de-sac. The division of the 
amenity space would have very minimal visual impact upon the area whilst allowing for 
sufficient amenity space to serve the new dwelling and 49 Park Street. Within the 
immediate area, and more importantly the Conservation Area, private gardens vary in 
size and depth, with many larger and linear in pattern. Whilst this development fails to 
secure a garden as large as most neighbours, it would still nonetheless be acceptable 
having regard to the South Oxfordshire Design Guide minimum standards and would 
contribute to the varying character and size of gardens within the Thame Conservation 

Page 59



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

Area. It is officer’s opinion that the plan form and layout of this development would not 
be detrimental to the character or appearance of the area.   

6.10 The design of the proposed dwelling, whilst one and a half storey in height, would, in 
officers’ opinion, continue to display a number of typical architectural characteristics 
including the use of slate roofing material, rendered brickwork and conservation style 
rooflights. Any permission would be conditioned to ensure that the most appropriate 
materials are used on the dwelling to respect the local vernacular.  

6.11 Officers consider that the design of the development would not cause any adverse 
harm to the surrounding area and where possible it has sought to respect the historic 
characteristics of the Conservation Area.  

Impact on neighbours

6.12 Council policies seek to ensure all new dwellings should be designed and laid out so as 
to secure a reasonable degree of privacy for the existing and new occupiers. Officers 
are satisfied that the proposed development would not be harmful to the amenity of 
neighbours. The proposed first floor windows would either be obscure glazed or 
designed as to avoid any direct views towards neighbouring properties. Officers are 
also satisfied that the scale and siting of the proposed dwelling would not result in any 
overbearing or oppressive impact on neighbouring dwellings or private amenity areas. 

Impact on highway

6.13 The Council’s policies and guidance seek to ensure that in determining planning 
applications, the Council should, in consultation with the local highway authority, ensure 
that new developments are designed to a standard that ensures a safe and attractive 
environment and does not result in an unacceptable level of traffic on the local highway 
network or have a detrimental impact on the amenities and environment of the area.  
Further to policy H4, policies T1 and T2 of the SOLP seek to ensure among other 
things that all developments make provision for safe and convenient access to the 
highway network and be served by an adequate road network. Development should 
provide for sufficient parking and access arrangements in accordance with the 
Council’s parking standards.

6.14 The local highway authority raise no objection to the development. In the views of the 
local highway authority the proposal is unlikely to have a significant adverse impact on 
the highway network. After investigation and reviewing the supplied documents, the 
local highway authority has no objection subject to conditions being applied to any 
permission which may be granted on the basis of highway safety. As such officers are 
satisfied that the development would not amount to any adverse pressures on the local 
highway network and would provide for adequate parking to serve the new dwelling. In 
addition it is worth noting that this site is very sustainable in location terms, with close 
proximity to the main Town centre, access to bus services and employment and school 
opportunities. In the event of any undersupply of parking spaces it is not considered 
reasonable to refuse this development due to the sustainability of this location. 

Planning balance

6.15 Without any clear or adverse visual impact, loss of historic character, highway impact or 
neighbour impact officers consider that the impact of the development is relatively low 
and coupled with the benefit of providing an additional dwelling, the development would 
not conflict with the Development Plan policies or the provisions of the NPPF. 

Page 60



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

Legal issues 

6.16 It is noted that the Victoria Mead Residents Association (VMRA) own the grassed area 
of land to the south, adjacent to the site. Without permission from the VMRA the 
property would not be able to be accessed directly off Victoria Mead and neither would 
the development be able to remove the fencing/vegetation to accommodate for the 
development; including the appropriate visibility splays. Officers appreciate that this can 
in itself prevent the development from occurring but the legal matters are not 
considered to be material planning considerations in the determination of this 
application.   

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

6.17 The council’s CIL charging schedule has recently been adopted and has applied to 
relevant proposals since 1 April 2016. CIL is a planning charge that local authorities 
can implement to help deliver infrastructure and to support the development of their 
area, and is primarily calculated on the increase in footprint created as a result of the 
development. In this case CIL would be liable for the development as there would be a 
net gain of new residential use. The CIL charge applied to new residential development 
in this case is £150 per square metre of floorspace (Zone 1). Of that, 25% of the 
payment should go directly to Thame Town Council (as they have a made 
Neighbourhood Plan) for spending towards local projects.  In this instance, only the 
additional floor space created to accommodate the dwelling is liable to pay CIL.  

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 The principle of residential development/conversion is considered acceptable on this 

site. Subject to the attached conditions the proposal would not be harmful to the 
character and appearance of the site and surrounding area, the historic interest of the 
conservation area or the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and would not result in any 
adverse or severe harm to the users of the highway.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
8.1 To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions: 

1. Commencement of development – three years from permission.
2. Development to be carried out in accordance with supporting plans.
3. Schedule of materials required, to be submitted to the local planning 

authority, for all external materials. 
4. No new openings along NE and NW elevations without first obtaining 

permission from the local planning authority.
5. Visibility splays to be improved/provided along Victoria Mead for two 

metres.
6. Parking and manoeuvring areas to be implemented and retained in 

accordance with the block plan. 
7. Details of boundary walls or fences proposed to be submitted for 

consideration by the local planning authority. 

Author:         Marc Pullen
Contact No: 01235 422600
Email:           planning@southoxon.gov.uk

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

Page 63

Agenda Item 10



Appendix B
Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



P
age 67



P
age 68



Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

APPLICATION NO. P16/S1971/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 28.6.2016
PARISH GARSINGTON
WARD MEMBER(S) Elizabeth Gillespie
APPLICANT Mr Simon Edwards
SITE 4 Elm Drive Garsington, OX44 9AG
PROPOSAL Demolition of existing internal and external walls and 

the erection of a replacement dwelling.  
AMENDMENTS As amended by drawings received 11th August 

2016, to reduce the ridgeline and the width of the 
first floor element (As amended by drawings 
received 12th September to amend the roof)

GRID REFERENCE 457424 / 202781
OFFICER Roseanne Lillywhite

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 This application has been referred to planning committee because the views of 

Garsington Parish Council differ from the officer’s recommendation.

1.2 Number 4, which is shown on the OS extract attached at Appendix 1, is currently a 3-
bedroom bungalow fronting onto Elm Drive. The property has a small front garden 
area and front driveway. 

1.3 The property falls within the Oxford Green Belt.

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1

2.2

The proposal involves the demolition of the majority of external and internal walls of the 
existing bungalow (as confirmed by Demolition plan drawing 08 Rev 01), and the 
erection of a new two storey dwelling.

The scheme has been amended to reduce the height and width of the first floor and 
also the roof has been amended to be fully pitched.

2.3 The plans accompanying the application are attached at Appendix 2.  Full copies of the 
supporting documentation and consultation responses are available for inspection on 
the Council’s website at www.southoxon.gov.uk

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 Garsington Parish Council – Objection – not in-keeping with the row of bungalows

Forestry Officer - No objections subject to condition

OCC (Highways) - No objections subject to conditions

Neighbour  - Object (96 Oxford Road) – harmful impact upon loss of light and privacy 
and not in-keeping with the established street scene

Neighbour Object (90 Oxford Road) – encroachment of development, overlooking by 
high level windows and concerns proposal is to make profit.

Page 71

Agenda Item 11

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/S1971/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 P90/N0625 - Approved (22/10/1990)

Extension to enlarge main bedroom, provide en suite bathroom and provide a dining 
room.

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy policies;

CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSEN2  -  Green Belt protection
CSQ3  -  Design

5.2 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 policies;
D1  -  Principles of good design
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
D4  -  Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
GB4  -  Openness of Green Belt maintained
H4  -  Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2008

5.3 National Planning Policy Framework

National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The main issues in the consideration of this application are;

 The principle of development in terms of housing policy
 Impact upon the Green Belt 
 Impact on character of the area
 Impact upon the amenities of the occupants of nearby properties 
 Parking provision

6.2 The principle of development in terms of housing policy
The proposal is a replacement dwelling.  The supporting text to saved Policy H12 of the 
South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 (SOLP), which allows for replacement dwellings 
outside settlements, states that, “permission will normally be granted for replacement 
dwellings, subject to amenity, environmental and traffic considerations.”

These issues will be covered in more detail below.

6.3 Impact upon the Green Belt 
The fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl, by keeping land 
permanently open.  This is set out in Section 9 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF).  This states the five purposes of the green belt, which are the 
following;

- to check the unrestricted urban sprawl of large built-up area
- to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another
- to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment 
- to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns

Page 72

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P90/N0625


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

6.4

6.5

- to assist  in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and 
other urban land

In addition there is the presumption against inappropriate development.  Inappropriate 
development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt.

The NPPF advises that a local planning authority should regard the construction of new 
buildings as inappropriate development in the Green Belt, except for the following 
purposes;

- agriculture and forestry
- appropriate facilities for outdoor sport and outdoor recreation, for cemeteries 

and other uses of land which preserve the openness of the Green Belt and don’t 
conflict with the purposes of including land in it

- the extension or alteration of a building where is it the same use as the 
existing and is not materially larger

- limited infilling in village, and limited affordable housing for local community 
needs under policies set out in the Local Plan or;

- limited infilling or partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed 
sites (brownfield land), whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding 
temporary buildings), which would not have a greater impact on the openness of 
the Green Belt and the purpose of including land within it than the existing 
development.

The first step in assessing the impact on the Green Belt, is to consider whether the 
proposal constitutes inappropriate development or not.  If it is established that the 
development is not inappropriate, then the second step is to consider whether the 
development harms the openness of Green Belt.  As the proposal relates to a 
replacement dwelling, I consider it can be considered under the highlighted section 
above. However, if the dwelling was not a replacement, but was a new dwelling, this 
would be considered as an infill plot, and therefore also acceptable.  This is because it 
is closely surrounded by buildings in a village where infill is acceptable in principle. 

Impact upon openness -   In the context of the wider visual amenity of the Green Belt, 
the position of the proposed dwelling within the built-up frontage of Elm Drive, will not, 
in my opinion, mean that the wider openness of the Green Belt will be materially 
harmed.  It is noted, however, that the erection of a two storey dwelling, as a 
replacement to a bungalow, will have some impact upon openness.  However, the 
NPPF does not consider infill or replacement of existing buildings, to be inappropriate 
forms of development.  As such, there is an acceptance that there will some limited 
impact as a result of having new buildings.

6.6

6.7

Impact on character of the area.
The design and materials of the replacement dwelling are in-keeping with the character 
of Elm Drive and match closely with the original bungalow.  Amended plans were 
sought to reduce the height of the new dwelling which has reduced the impact upon the 
street scene.  The roof has also been amended to be fully pitched rather than the 
originally submitted part flat roof.  This has also reduced the bulk of side views of the 
property and has reduced the depth at the rear.  Consideration has been given to the 
fact, that Elm Drive comprises a variety of property types from bungalows to two storey 
detached and semi-detached properties.  The street scene is therefore, not materially 
harmed by the addition of the proposed two storey dwelling.

Impact upon the amenities of the occupants of nearby properties 
Comments have been received from occupiers of two neighbouring properties which 
are located along Oxford Road, and adjoin the application site.  A summary of their 
concerns are listed below;

Page 73



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

96 Oxford Road
- loss of privacy and light
- not in-keeping with bungalows along Elm Drive

90 Oxford Road
- encroachment of development
- overlooking by high level windows
- concern dwelling is to make a profit

I will take each point in turn below;

Loss of privacy and light
The property of 96 Oxford Road lies to the side of the proposal, so its rear garden 
backs onto the south west of the application site.  The upper floor side facing windows 
will be obscure glazed, so there would be no issue of privacy loss.  With regards to loss 
of light, the proposal will extend just over a metre beyond the existing bungalow and the 
ridge has been considerably reduced in height in order to minimise the impact upon this 
neighbour.  Therefore, in my opinion, there would be some loss of light, but this is not 
significantly harmful to refuse the planning permission.  However, conditions to remove 
all permitted development rights will be added to this permission, to restrict future 
extensions to the dwelling to protect neighbour amenity.

Not in-keeping with bungalows along Elm Drive
As mentioned in section 6.8 of this report, Elm Drive contains a mixture of two storey 
properties and bungalows.  Whilst it is noted, the two adjoining properties are 
bungalows, in the wider street scene, there is a two storey property at number 8 Elm 
Drive and further up the road lies a row of 10 semi-detached properties.  Opposite the 
proposal is a bungalow, but two along from this is another two storey property.  
Therefore, I consider the location of a two storey property acceptable in this location, as 
there is clearly a mix of properties along Elm Drive.

Encroachment of development
This is an existing residential area and as covered above, the principle of infill or 
replacement dwellings is acceptable in this location.

Overlooking by high level windows
As covered above in section 6.11 the upper floor side facing windows will be obscure 
glazed.  Overlooking concerns are raised by the occupier of number 90 Oxford Road, 
which is located to the rear of the proposal.   However, this property is located a 
distance of over 32 metres away from the boundary and at this distance, I do not 
consider there would be any privacy issues.

Concerns dwelling is to make a profit
This is not relevant to this application, as the council has a duty to assess a proposal on 
its own merits against council policies, so we cannot take into account the intentions of 
the applicant.  

Parking provision
The council’s standards set out in Appendix 5 of the SOLP, state that for a 4 + bedroom 
property, the maximum number of off-street parking spaces is 2+ spaces.  The 
submitted Block plan clearly shows there will be two spaces available with the integral 
garage creating a third space.  In conjunction with the attached conditions, to ensure 
the parking shown is implemented, if permission is granted, the proposal meets with the 
council’s standards. 

Page 74



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 2 November 2016

6.12 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
The council’s CIL charging schedule has recently been adopted and will apply to 
relevant proposals from 1 April 2016. CIL is a planning charge that local authorities can 
implement to help deliver infrastructure and to support the development of their area, 
and is primarily calculated on the increase in footprint created as a result of the 
development. 

The CIL charge applied to new residential development in this case is £150 per 140 
square metres of additional floor space (Zone 1).15% of the CIL payment will go 
directly to Garsington Parish Council (in the absence of an adopted Neighbourhood 
Plan) for sending towards local projects.

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 It is recommended that planning permission is granted, because the development is a 

replacement dwelling in a settlement where such development is acceptable.  The 
development is also acceptable in terms of its impact upon the overall street scene and 
not materially harm the openness or visual amenity of the Green Belt and will not be 
unneighbourly.

Conditions are proposed relating to highways matters and landscaping, to ensure 
adequate parking provision is provided and tress are provided to help screen and 
soften the proposal.  Subject to these conditions, the proposal accords with the relevant 
development plan policies.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
8.1 To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions:

1. Commencement three years - full planning permission.
2. Approved plans. 
3. Sample materials required (walls and roof).
4. Parking and manoeuvring areas retained. 
5. No garage conversion into accommodation.
6. Landscaping Scheme (trees and shrubs only)
7. Withdrawal of permitted development rights (part 1 classes A, B and C – 

no extensions etc.)
8. Withdrawal of permitted development rights (part 1 class E – no buildings 

etc.)

Author:          Roseanne Lillywhite
Contact no:   01235 422600
Email:           planning@southoxon.gov.uk 

Page 75

mailto:planning@southoxon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 77

Agenda Item 11

SHACRA
Textbox
Application site

SHACRA_1
Typewriter
Appendix 1



Appendix 2

P
age 78



Appendix 2

Page 79



P
age 80



P
age 81



Page 82



P
age 83



Page 84


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes
	South planning minutes - 5 October 2016
	Minutes


	7 P16/S1400/FUL - Corbiere, Dunsden Way, Binfield Heath
	P16/S1400/FUL - Corbiere, Dunsden Way, Binfield Heath - Appendices
	1a GIS Extract
	Composite Plans and Elevations Proposed drwgno 7531.1C


	8 P16/S2650/FUL - Newlands, Platts Lane, Northend
	P16/S2650/FUL - Newlands, Platts Lane, Northend - Appendices
	Appendix A
	Appendix B.1
	Appendix B.2


	9 P16/S1955/HH - Bridleway Barn, Spriggs Alley, Chinnor Hill
	P16/S1955/HH - Bridleway Barn, Spriggs Alley, Chinnor Hill - Appendices
	1a GIS Extract
	2 Block Plan drwgno BLO-001 REV A 
	2b Location Plan drwgno LOC-001
	2c Proposed Floor Plan drwgno-L01A
	2d Proposed Elevations drwgno-L02A
	2e Proposed Elevations drwgno-L03A
	2f Garage Plan drwgno OP1-001 REV A


	10 P16/S2222/FUL - 48 Park Street, Thame
	P16/S222/FUL - 48 Park Street, Thame - Appendices
	Appendix A
	Appendix B.1
	Appendix B.2
	Appendix B.3
	Appendix B.4
	Appendix B.5
	Appendix B.6


	11 P16/S1971/FUL - 4 Elm Drive, Garsington
	P16/S1971/FUL - 4 Elm Drive, Garsington - Appendices
	1 Location plan
	1a Location and Block Plans dwgno 07 rev 06
	20161410154708_Committee Report
	Demolition plan dwgno 08 Rev 01
	Elevations Existing Dwg 01
	Elevations Proposed dwgno 06 Rev 04 
	Floor Ground Existing Dwg 02
	Floor Plans First Proposed dwgno 05 Rev 08
	Floor Plans Ground Proposed dwgno  04 rev 06





